

EATON BOARD OF EDUCATION REGULAR MEETING
Hollingsworth East Elementary School Cafeteria
January 8, 2024
Immediately following the Organizational Meeting

I. Opening of the Meeting

A. Call to order – President

B. Roll Call

E. Beeghly _____ B. Deacon _____ B. Myers _____ L. Noble _____ T. Parks _____

C. Pledge of Allegiance

D. Public Hearing on the 2025-2026 School Calendar

Pursuant to Ohio Revised Code 3313.48(B), the Board of Education shall hold a public hearing on the school calendar, addressing topics that include, but are not limited to, the total number of hours in a school year, length of school day, and beginning and end dates of instruction, (Attachment A).

At this time the Board will entertain any comments from the public.

E. Executive Session (if necessary)

To consider the employment of a public official.

The following individuals are invited to attend: _____

Motion by _____, second by _____ to convene executive session.

Beeghly _____ Deacon _____ Myers _____ Noble _____ Parks _____

President declares motion _____

President convenes executive session at _____ p.m.

President resumes open session at _____ p.m.

II. Treasurer's Business – Rachel Tait

ADOPTION OF CONSENT AGENDA ITEM – FINANCIAL

Action by the Board of Education in "Adoption of Consent Agenda Item" at this point of the agenda means that item A is adopted by one single motion unless a member of the Board, the Superintendent, or the Treasurer requests that any such item be removed from the "Consent Agenda Items" and voted on separately.

A. The Treasurer recommends approval of the following:

1. Approve minutes of the December 4, 2023 Regular Board Meeting.
2. Submission of Warrants November 2023.
3. Submission of Financial Report November 2023.
4. Submission of Investment Report November 2023.
5. Submission of Warrants December 2023.
6. Submission of Financial Report December 2023.
7. Submission of Investment Report December 2023.
8. Approve FY24 Permanent Appropriations.

Motion by _____, second by _____

Discussion

Beeghly _____ Deacon _____ Myers _____ Noble _____ Parks _____

President declares motion _____.

III. Reports

A. Miami Valley Career Technology Center Report – Terry Parks

B. Parks and Recreation Board Report – Ben Myers

C. Superintendent Report – Jeff Parker

1. Removing Barriers to Learning
2. Board of Education Member Appreciation

D. Other Reports

IV. Old Business

V. New Business

ADOPTION OF CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS - PERSONNEL

Action by the Board of Education in “Adoption of Consent Agenda Items” at this point of the agenda means that items A through I are adopted by one single motion unless a member of the Board, the Superintendent, or the Treasurer requests that any such item be removed from the “Consent Agenda Items” and voted on separately.

A. Employment – Certified Staff – Long Term Substitute Teacher

The Administration recommends approval of the following long-term substitute teacher for the 2023-2024 school year. Employment contingent upon completion of all local and state requirements, including but not limited to background checks and appropriate license. Salary and duties per Board Policy and Administration Rules and Regulations.

1. Victoria Jacobs, Long Term Substitute Science Teacher at Eaton High School during the second semester of the 2023-2024 school year, effective January 9, 2024.

B. Employment – Certificated Staff Supplemental Contract

The Administration recommends the following supplemental contracts for the 2023-2024 school year. Salary and duties per Board Policy, Negotiated Agreement, Administrative Rules and Regulations, and any applicable state requirements.

1. Haley Tolley, Musical Vocal Director

C. Employment – Certificated Staff – Substitute Teacher/Tutor as Certified by Eaton Community Schools and/or the Preble County Educational Service Center

The Administration recommends approval of the following substitute teacher/home instruction tutor for the 2023-2024 school year, as certified by the Preble County Educational Service Center.

1. Nancy Briley
2. Jennifer Starks

D. Employment – Certificated Staff - Substitute Teacher/Tutor as Certified by Eaton Community Schools and/or the Preble County Educational Service Center

The Administration recommends approval of the following substitute teachers/home instruction tutors for the 2023-2024 school year, as certified by the Preble County Educational Service Center with a provisional substitute license. Employment contingent upon all local requirements being met.

1. Luke Byrne
2. Dylan Finkbine
3. Eric Kiracofe

E. Health and Hardship Leave

The Administration recommends approval of a health and hardship leave of absence for Wanda Parker, Bus Driver from November 23, 2023 to November 22, 2024.

F. Employment – Classified Staff

The Administration recommends the employment of the following personnel for the 2023-2024 school year. Employment contingent upon certification (where applicable), criminal background

check, and all other state and local requirements. Salary and duties per Board Policy, Negotiated Agreement, and Administrative Rules and Regulations.

1. Kaleb Wilson, Custodian

G. Employment of Non-certificated Extracurricular Position

The following position has been posted and neither an employee of the district holding an educator license, who meets all of the Board's qualification, nor a nonemployee of the district holding an educator license, who meets all of the board's qualifications, has applied for, been offered, or accepted the position. The Administration recommends the employment of this nominee on a one-year limited contract for the 2023-2024 school year, or as noted, contingent upon completion of all state and local requirements. Salary and duties per Board Policy, Negotiated Agreement, and Administrative Rules and Regulations.

1. Andrea Marsh, Dramatics Assistant Director (1/2 stipend)
2. Angela Hundley, Musical Instrumental Director

H. Resignation – Rescind Amended Resolution

The Administration recommends to rescind Resolution 2324-45 Resignation - Amend Resolution, Item V.E, on the December 4, 2023 agenda, returning the effective retirement date for Scott Aten to December 29, 2023.

I. Volunteers

The Administration recommends approval of the following volunteers for the 2023-2024 school year, contingent upon completion of all state and local requirements, including criminal background check if necessary.

1. Scott Lammers, Volunteer – Softball Program

Motion by _____ second by _____

Discussion

Beeghly _____ Deacon _____ Myers _____ Noble _____ Parks _____

President declares motion _____.

ADOPTION OF CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS - ADMINISTRATIVE

Action by the Board of Education in "Adoption of Consent Agenda Items" at this point of the agenda means that items J through N are adopted by one single motion unless a member of the Board, the Superintendent, or the Treasurer requests that any such item be removed from the "Consent

Agenda Items” and voted on separately.

J. Donation

The Administration recommends approval of and wishes to recognize the following donation.

1. Covenant of Peace International, \$300.00 for the elementary school lunch program.

K. Agreement with the Preble County General Health District

The Administration recommends approval of the contract with the Preble County General Health District to provide immunization services effective January 1, 2024 through December 31, 2024. Services performed by the Preble County Health District include Hepatitis B Immunization at a rate of \$78.00 per dose, Administration fee per vaccine is \$25 per visit, and TB Skin Test is \$15.00 per test.

L. Agreement with Montgomery County Educational Service Center

The Administration recommends the approval of the following service agreement for the 2023-2024 school year for services from the Montgomery County Educational Service Center.

1. ED Program Services, effective July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024, (Attachment B).

M. Board Policy Updates

The Administration recommends the second reading and adoption of the following new and updated Board policies, (Addendum A).

1. Policy 0141.2 - Conflict of Interest
2. Policy 2623.02 - Third Grade Reading Guarantee
3. Policy 3120.08 - Employment of Personnel for Co-Curricular/Extra-Curricular Activities
4. Policy 4120.08 - Employment of Personnel for Co-Curricular/Extra-Curricular Activities
5. Policy 5320 - Immunization
6. Policy 5330 - Use of Medications
7. Policy 5337 - Care of Students with Active Seizure Disorders
8. Policy 6700 - Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA)
9. Policy 8330 - Student Records
10. Policy 8600 - Transportation
11. Policy 8650 - Transportation by School Van
12. Policy 9160 - Public Attendance at School Events
13. Policy 9270 - Equivalent Education Outside the Schools & Participation in Extra-Curricular for Students not Enrolled in the District

N. Obsolete Items

The Administration recommends approval to declare certain items of no value as obsolete and to dispose of them accordingly.

1. Autotronics Cassette Player, High School, tag #5860
2. Eiki Cassette Player, High School, tag #8690

3. RCA DVD Player, High School, tag #11207
4. RCA DVD Player, High School, tag #10127
5. RCA DVD Player, High School, tag #10089
6. RCA DVD Player, High School, tag #10653
7. RCA DVD Player, High School, tag #10783
8. RCA DVD Player, High School, tag #10551
9. RCA DVD Player, High School, tag #10118
10. RCA DVD Player, High School, tag #10645
11. RCA DVD Player, High School, tag #11165
12. RCA DVD Player, High School, tag #11316
13. Zenith DVD Player, High School, tag #8456
14. Panasonic DVD Player, High School, tag #10685
15. (3) DVD Players, High School
16. (4) VCR Players, High School
17. (2) Projectors, High School
18. Projector, High School, tag #11933
19. Projector, High School, tag #12199
20. Overhead Projector, High School, tag #12521
21. Overhead Projector, High School, tag #10163
22. Overhead Projector, High School, tag #9254
23. Overhead Projector, High School, tag #3422
24. Overhead projector, High School, tag #12108
25. Overhead projector, High School, tag #2713
26. (1) Overhead projector, High School
27. Miscellaneous copier and printer supplies
28. (25) Dell Chromebooks
29. (3) Lenovo Chromebooks
30. Document Camera, High School, tag #14741
31. Document Camera, East Elementary, tag #14714
32. Document Camera, East Elementary, tag #14723

Motion by _____, seconded by _____

Discussion

Beeghly _____ Deacon _____ Myers _____ Noble _____ Parks _____

President declares motion _____.

O. Executive Session (if necessary)

To consider/discuss: _____.

The following individuals are invited to attend: _____

Motion by _____, second by _____ to convene executive session.

Beeghly _____ Deacon _____ Myers _____ Noble _____ Parks _____

President declares motion _____

President convenes executive session at _____ p.m.

President resumes open session at _____ p.m.

VI. Adjournment

Motion by _____, seconded by _____
_____ to adjourn the meeting.

Discussion

Beeghly _____ Deacon _____ Myers _____ Noble _____ Parks _____

President declares motion _____

President adjourns meeting at _____ p.m.

Upcoming Meetings

Meeting: Regular Board Meeting
Date/Time: Monday, February 12, 2024 – 6:00 p.m.
Location: East Elementary School

Meeting: Regular Board Meeting
Date/Time: Monday, March 11, 2024 – 6:00 p.m.
Location: East Elementary School

Eaton Community Schools -DRAFT

ATTACHMENT A

2025-2026 School Calendar

START – FINISH:	
August 11, 2025 – May 21, 2026	

SUMMARY OF DAYS	
First Semester	88
Second Semester	90
TOTAL DAYS	178

STUDENT DAYS PER QUARTER	
1 st Quarter	46
2 nd Quarter	42
3 rd Quarter	46
4 th Quarter	44

CALENDAR LEGEND	
Start/End Days	
End Quarter	
P/T Conferences	
Professional Development	
No School/Holiday	
Interim/Grades Issued	

NON-STUDENT DAYS	
Labor Day	9/1
Staff Prof. Dev.	9/22
Columbus Day	10/13
Staff Prof. Day	10/14
Veterans Day - Recognized	11/14
Thanksgiving Break	11/26-28
Winter Break	12/22-1/2
MLK Jr. Day	1/19/26
Staff Prof. Dev.	1/26
Conference Make-up Day	1/13
President's Day	2/16
Staff Prof. Dev.	3/13
Spring Break	3/30-4/3
Good Friday	4/3
Memorial Day	5/25

STUDENT HOURS IN CLASSROOM		
Elementary (K-5) @	6	1068
hours per day		
MS/ HS (6-12) @		1112.5
6.25 hours per day		

Calamity Make-up Days	
<ul style="list-style-type: none"> Calamity Days 1-5 Students will not make up. Calamity Days 6-8 – eDay Lessons Any additional days will be made up as needed. 	

Date	Event
AUGUST 2025	
Aug. 11	First Day for Teachers & Open House
Aug. 12	Staff Work Day
Aug. 13	First Day for Students
SEPTEMBER	
Sept. 1	No School – Labor Day
Sept. X	Interim Reports Issued
Sept. 22	No School for Students – Staff Prof. Dev. Day
OCTOBER	
Oct. 13	No School - Columbus Day
Oct. 14	No School for Students – Staff Prof. Dev. Day
Oct. 17	End of 1 st Quarter
Oct. 24	Grade Cards Issued
NOVEMBER	
Nov. 13	Parent/Teacher Conferences
Nov. 14	No School – Veteran's Day
Nov. XX	Interim Reports Issued
Nov. 26-28	Thanksgiving Break
DECEMBER	
Dec. 19	End of 2 nd Quarter/1 st Semester
Dec. 22-31	No School – Winter Break
JANUARY 2026	
Jan. 1-2	No School – Winter Break
Jan. 5	Classes Resume
Jan. 7	Grade Cards Issued
Jan. 19	No School – MLK Jr. Day
Jan. 26	No School for Students – Staff Prof. Dev. Day
FEBRUARY	
Feb. XX	Interim Reports Issued
Feb. 12	Parent/Teacher Conferences
Feb. 13	No School – Conference Make-up Day
Feb. 16	No School – President's Day
MARCH	
March 12	End of 3 rd Quarter
March 13	No School for Students – Staff Prof. Dev. Day
March 20	Grade Cards Issued
March 30-31	No School - Spring Break
APRIL	
April 1-2	No School – Spring Break
April 3	No School – Good Friday
April XX	Interim Reports Issued
MAY	
May 21	Last Day for Students
May 21	End of 4 th Quarter/2 nd Semester
May 22	Last Day for Staff
May 25	Memorial Day
May 29	Grade Cards Issued
TBD	Graduation

AUGUST				
M	T	W	T	F
4	5	6	7	8
11	12	13	14	15
18	19	20	21	22
26	27	28	29	30
SEPTEMBER				
1	2	3	4	5
8	9	10	11	12
15	16	17	18	19
22	23	24	25	26
29	30			
OCTOBER				
		1	2	3
6	7	8	9	10
13	14	15	16	17
20	21	22	23	24
27	28	29	30	31
NOVEMBER				
3	4	5	6	7
10	11	12	13	14
17	18	19	20	21
24	25	26	27	28
DECEMBER				
1	2	3	4	5
8	9	10	11	12
15	16	17	18	19
22	23	24	25	26
29	30	31		
JANUARY 2026				
			1	2
5	6	7	8	9
12	13	14	15	16
19	20	21	22	23
26	27	28	29	30
FEBRUARY				
2	3	4	5	6
9	10	11	12	13
16	17	18	19	20
23	24	25	26	27
MARCH				
2	3	4	5	6
9	10	11	12	13
16	17	18	19	20
23	24	25	26	27
30	31			
APRIL				
		1	2	3
6	7	8	9	10
13	14	15	16	17
20	21	22	23	24
27	28	29	30	
MAY				
				1
4	5	6	7	8
11	12	13	14	15
18	19	20	21	22
25	26	27	28	29

»»» MISSION

**Visionary Leaders Providing
Exemplary Service**



SERVICE AGREEMENT

2023-2024 School Year

This AGREEMENT shall serve as a contract between the Eaton Community School ("District") and the Montgomery County Educational Service Center ("Montgomery County ESC") beginning on July 1, 2023 and ending on June 30, 2024. Services will be provided and billed for the 2023-2024 school year.

1. SERVICES

- a. The Montgomery County ESC shall provide the following services to the District:

ED Program

2. COMPLIANCE

- a. Instructional Programs and Related Services shall be rendered in compliance with law, and in accordance with acceptable standards and caseload.
- b. The parties shall cooperate in order to facilitate the success of the students served by the District and Montgomery County ESC, and, in particular, the District agrees to cooperate with Montgomery County ESC in the performance of Montgomery County ESC's duties and obligations hereunder.

3. COMPENSATION

- a. Based on the estimated cost of the services provided by the Montgomery County ESC, as provided above, the District agrees to pay the Montgomery County ESC the amount of \$353/day pursuant to R.C. 3313.845 or applicable law. Both the District and the Montgomery County ESC understand and agree that this amount is based on estimated costs only and shall be modified pursuant to Section 3(c) of this Agreement.
- b. The District agrees to make payment in the amount listed in Section 3(a) to the Montgomery County ESC. The Montgomery County ESC will provide the District with an invoice for services hereunder on a monthly basis. Payment is due within 30 days of the District's receipt of each invoice.
- c. Reconciliation of actual costs for said services shall be made at the end of the fiscal year with the final bill representing the actual/adjusted bill for services.

4. LICENSURE/CERTIFICATION

The Montgomery County ESC will ensure that all individuals providing services under this Agreement obtain and maintain all necessary licensure and/or certification. A copy of all such credentials/licenses shall be maintained by the Montgomery County ESC for inspection, upon request, by the District.

5. MANNER OF PROVIDING SERVICES

In performing the Services, the Montgomery County ESC at all times shall exercise independent professional judgment and shall determine the manner by which the Services are to be rendered. Except as otherwise agreed by the parties, the individuals performing Services pursuant to this Agreement will at all times remain employees or contractors of the Montgomery County ESC and Montgomery County ESC shall be solely responsible for all payroll functions, including retirement system contributions and all other legal withholding and/or payroll taxes, with respect to its employees. Unless otherwise agreed by the parties, Montgomery County ESC will be responsible for the training and direct supervision of its employees when they are providing Services to the District. Services shall be provided in accordance with all applicable laws, rules and regulations, including policies and regulations of

200 South Keowee Street | Dayton, Ohio 45402

f @MontgomeryCountyESC | t @MCESC

Montgomery County ESC. At the discretion of Montgomery County ESC, personnel who are assigned by Montgomery County ESC to provide Services may also be assigned to provide services unrelated to the District (i.e., such personnel need not be exclusively assigned by Montgomery County ESC to provide Services hereunder).

6. CRIMINAL RECORDS CHECKS ON EMPLOYEES

The Montgomery County ESC will ensure that all applicable criminal records/background check laws and any hiring restriction imposed by those laws, including but not limited to those set forth in R.C. Chapter 3319, are adhered to and satisfied.

7. EVALUATIONS

The Board agrees that it shall be responsible for conducting evaluations of Montgomery County ESC personnel assigned to the District as required by R.C. 3319.01, 3319.02, 3319.11, 3319.111, or any other applicable provision of the Ohio Revised Code.

8. CONFIDENTIALITY/EDUCATION AND STUDENT RECORDS

- a. The District and Montgomery County ESC acknowledge that in the course of performing their obligations under this Agreement, both may obtain certain confidential and proprietary information about the other party ("Confidential Information"). Both the District and Montgomery County ESC agree that they will only use Confidential Information of the other party in the performance of its obligations under this Agreement and that it will not, at any time during or following the term of this Agreement, divulge, disclose or communicate any Confidential Information to any other person, firm, corporation or organization or otherwise use the Confidential Information for any purpose whatsoever without the prior written consent of the disclosing party.
- b. Confidential Information does not include information which is: (a) in the public domain other than by a breach of this Section on the part of the recipient; (b) rightfully received from a third party without any obligation of confidentiality; (c) rightfully known to the recipient without any limitation on use or disclosure prior to its receipt from the disclosing party; (d) independently developed by the recipient; or (e) disclosed pursuant to the order or requirement of a court, administrative agency or other government body.
- c. The parties acknowledge that under the terms of this Agreement they may be exchanging personally identifiable student information. Each party agrees that it shall not, and shall ensure that its respective employees, contractors, subcontractors, representatives or agents do not, access, use or disseminate any student information deemed personally identifiable, as defined in the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) (20 U.S.C. 1232g, 34 C.F.R. Part 99) and Ohio R.C. §3319.321, in violation of the terms of those laws or other law applicable to Montgomery County ESC or the District with respect to such information. Each party shall ensure that its respective employees, contractors, subcontractors, representatives or agents who are provided with access to personally identifiable student information will be trained in FERPA requirements and their duties to handle such information in compliance with those requirements.

9. UNEMPLOYMENT

The District agrees to pay, for any programs or services in which it has elected to participate, the pro-rata share of any unemployment benefits which may become payable due to the cancellation of the service or program.

10. FORCE MAJEURE

Neither the District nor Montgomery County ESC shall be deemed to be in breach or default of any provision of this Agreement by reason of a delay or failure in performance due to acts of God, acts of governments, wars, riots, strikes, accidents in transportation, or other causes beyond the control of the parties.

11. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the parties, and supersedes any previous agreements they may have made, whether orally or in writing.

12. AMENDMENT

Except as otherwise provided herein, this Agreement shall not be amended except in writing signed by both parties hereto and this Agreement may not be discharged except by performance in accordance with its terms or by writing signed by the party to be charged. However, if the District and/or Montgomery County ESC is required to amend the Agreement pursuant to a change in the Ohio Department of Education guidelines or other federal, state, or local law, it is agreed that this Agreement can be amended pursuant to such mandate through mutual consent of the District and Montgomery County ESC.

13. WAIVER OF BREACH

The waiver by any party of breach or violation of any provision of this Agreement shall not operate as or be construed to be a waiver of any subsequent breach hereof, or as to any party hereto.

14. BINDING EFFECT

This Agreement shall not be binding until adopted by the Board and Montgomery County ESC in public session and executed by the parties.

15. MEDICAID SCHOOL PROGRAM

With regard to any therapy services provided by the Montgomery County ESC pursuant to this Agreement, the Montgomery County ESC (1) will comply with the requirements of 45 CFR 164.504(e)(1) for safeguarding and limiting access to information concerning beneficiaries; (2) will allow the representatives of the U.S. Department of Human Services, ODM, ODE or their respective designee access to the subcontractor's books, documents and records; and (3) acknowledges that they or their principles are not suspended or debarred.

Please sign and return this agreement to the Treasurer, Montgomery County Educational Service Center.

For Eaton Community Schools:

Superintendent's Signature Date

Treasurer's Signature Date

For Montgomery County ESC:

Superintendent's Signature Date

Treasurer's Signature Date



Book	Policy Manual
Section	Policies Recommended for the BOE (42.1 Fall 2023 Update)
Title	CONFLICT OF INTEREST
Code	po0141.2
Status	
Adopted	October 12, 2015
Last Revised	December 10, 2018

0141.2 - CONFLICT OF INTEREST

A Board member shall not have any direct or indirect pecuniary interest in a contract with the District; nor shall a Board member~~/he~~ furnish directly any labor, equipment, or supplies to the District; nor shall a Board member~~/he~~ be employed by the Board in any capacity for compensation.

In the event a Board member is employed by a corporation, business, political subdivision, or a public or private institution of higher education~~corporation or business~~ which furnishes goods or services to the School District, the Board member shall declare ~~their~~his/her association with the organization and refrain from debating or voting upon the question of the contract. It is not the intent of this policy to prevent the District from contracting with corporations or businesses because a Board member is an employee of the firm. The policy is designed to prevent placing a Board member in a position where a Board member's~~his~~ interest in the public schools and his/her interest in ~~their~~his/her place of employment might conflict and to avoid appearances of conflict of interest even though such conflict may not exist.

Among the conflicts which law specifically forbids:

- A. the prosecuting attorney or city attorney from serving on the Board of Education;
- B. a Board member from serving as the school dentist, physician, or nurse;
- C. a Board member from being employed for compensation by the Board;
- D. a Board member from having, directly or indirectly, any pecuniary interest in any contract with the Board;
- E. a Board member from accepting a reward, gift, or reduction in price for favoring, recommending, or advocating the introduction, adoption, or use in the school of a textbook, map, chart, or any other school supply;
- F. a Board member, for a period of one (1) year after leaving office, from accepting employment with the Board where such employment was authorized by the Board while a Board member~~/he~~ was a member thereof;
- G. a Board member from soliciting or using the authority or influence of ~~the~~his/her office to secure employment with the Board;
- H. a Board member from voting, deliberating, participating in discussions, or otherwise using the authority or influence of ~~the~~his/her office to create a position with the School District or to set the compensation for such position where ~~the Board member~~he is considering, or is being considered for, employment in that position;
- I. a Board member from having an interest in a contract for the purchase of property, supplies, or fire insurance by any county, township, municipal corporation, board of education, or public institution anywhere in the State of Ohio, if such contract exceeds \$150 unless the contract is let by competitive bidding;
- J. a Board member from being involved in any aspect of the hiring process including, but not limited to, discussing, deliberating, interviewing, or voting on a contract with that person as a teacher or instructor if ~~the~~ Board

~~members/he~~ is related to that person as spouse, father, mother, step-parent, brother, sister, minor child, step-child, grandparent, grandchild, or any other person related by blood or marriage that resides in the same household as the Board member;

- K. a Board member from authorizing or using the authority or influence of office to secure authorization of a public contract in which the Board member, a member of ~~their/his/her~~ family, or any of ~~their/his/her~~ business associates has an interest;
- L. a Board member from authorizing or using the authority or influence of office to secure the investment of public funds in any share, bond, mortgage, or other security in which the Board member, any member of ~~their/his/her~~ family, or any of ~~their/his/her~~ business associates have an interest, or receives any brokerage, origination or servicing fees, or is an underwriter;
- M. a Board member from having an interest in the profits or benefits of a public contract entered into by the District with which ~~a Board member's/he~~ is connected;
- N. a Board member from using the authority or influence of office to secure anything of value or the promise of anything of value to the Board member, from soliciting or accepting anything of value that is of such a character as to manifest an improper and substantial influence upon the Board member with respect to ~~the Board member's/his/her~~ duties.

Board members shall not accept any form of compensation from a vendor or other improper source that is seeking to do business with the District, is doing business with the District, is regulated by or interested in matters before the District. In addition, Board members shall not enter into a contractual arrangement with a vendor seeking to do business with the District, or a vendor with whom the District is doing business, whereby an individual Board member receives compensation in any form for services rendered. Such compensation or things of value are not limited to: cash, check, stocks, or any other form of securities, and gifts such as televisions, microwave ovens, computers, discount certificates, travel vouchers, tickets, passes, and other such things of value. In the event that a Board member receives such compensation, the Board member shall immediately notify the Treasurer, in writing, that ~~they/he~~ received such compensation and shall thereafter promptly transmit such compensation to the Treasurer.

Nothing herein shall prevent a Board member who attends a conference held by an association of public officials and employees from accepting a meal, or attending a reception or open house, the cost of which is financed by a private party so long as the meal, reception, or open house is: 1) of an ordinary, routine character; 2) at an educational or informational event; and 3) open to all of the public officials and employees attending the event. A Board member is prohibited from improperly using ~~their/his/her~~ position to secure the donation of the cost of a meal, reception, or open house at a conference of an association of public officials and employees to which ~~the Board member's/he~~ or ~~their/his/her~~ Board belongs, while the Board member is simultaneously engaged in governmental business or regulatory activity directly affecting the related interests of the person solicited.

A Board member whose spouse is an employee in the District may not vote, authorize, or use the influence of ~~his/her~~ office to secure approval of an employment contract with ~~the Board member's/his/her~~ spouse. Neither may ~~the Board member's/he~~ vote, deliberate, discuss, or otherwise attempt to influence a collectively-bargained, negotiated agreement affecting ~~their/his/her~~ spouse if the spouse is an officer, executive committee member, or member of the negotiating team or committee of the employee organization or if the agreement includes provisions for health insurance under which said Board member is covered as a benefit of the spouse's employment.

Board members are responsible for knowledge of the ethics law applicable to their public service as an elected official in the State of Ohio. Board members should seek guidance on the application of Ohio's ethics law prior to acting. This policy is an overview, not a complete statement of Ohio's ethics laws.

© Neola 202318

Legal

R.C. 102.03(D)(E)(F), 2921.42(A)(3), 2921.44(D-F),

R.C. 2921.02, 3313.13, 3313.33, 3313.70, 3319.21

Ohio Ethics Commission Advisory Opinion No. 2002-02 (6/13/2002)

Last Modified by Norm Burkhardt on November 17, 2023



Book	Policy Manual
Section	Policies Recommended for the BOE (42.1 Fall 2023 Update)
Title	THIRD GRADE READING GUARANTEE
Code	po2623.02
Status	
Adopted	October 12, 2015
Last Revised	December 16, 2013

2623.02 - THIRD GRADE READING GUARANTEE

All students entering the third grade ~~are expected to~~ must demonstrate a certain level of competency in reading before advancing to the fourth grade.

In accordance with State law, the Superintendent shall develop a program for the annual assessment of the reading skills of each student at the end of first, second, and third grade and identify those students who are reading below their grade level. Each student's classroom teacher shall be involved in the assessment and identification of those students who are reading below grade level.

The District shall provide intervention services to students whose assessments show that they are failing to make satisfactory progress toward attaining the academic standards for their grade level.

Definitions

"On track" means any student who is reading at grade level based on previous end-of-year standards expectations by September 30th.

"Not on track" means any student who is not reading at grade level based on previous end-of-year standards expectations by September 30th.

Assessment of Reading Skills Program

- A. Diagnostic assessments in reading, as approved by the Ohio Department of Education and Workforce (DEW) (ODE), shall be given by September 30th of each year for students in kindergarten through Grade Three (3), with the exception of students with significant cognitive disabilities or other disabilities as authorized by the DEW (ODE) on a case-by-case basis. ~~For kindergarten students, prior to July 1, 2014, the kindergarten readiness assessment shall be administered not earlier than four (4) weeks prior to the start of school and not later than September 30th. For kindergarten students, beginning July 1, 2014, the kindergarten readiness assessment shall be administered not earlier than the first day of the school year and not later than November 1st, except the language and readiness skills portion of the assessment shall be administered by September 30th. For students enrolled in first, second, or third grade, the diagnostic assessments in reading shall be administered at least once annually.~~

The District shall administer each applicable diagnostic assessment to any student who transfers into the District or into a new school within the District who did not take a diagnostic assessment at the previous school during the current school year unless the student is excused from taking the assessment as provided for in the preceding paragraph. The diagnostic assessment(s) shall be administered within thirty (30) days of transfer.

After the administration of any diagnostic assessment, the District shall provide to each student's parent a copy of the student's completed diagnostic assessment, the results of such assessment, and any other accompanying documents used during the administration of the assessment. The preceding documents and information shall be included in any reading improvement and monitoring plan(s) developed with respect to the student. The District shall also submit to the DEW (ODE) the results of the diagnostic assessments administered pursuant to this section.

- B. Diagnostic assessment results shall be translated to ~~DEW's ODE's~~ definitions of "on track" and "not on track". The District shall make the final determination regarding whether a student is "on track" or "not on track".
- C. If the diagnostic assessment shows that a student is "not on track" to be reading at grade level by the end of the year, the parent will be notified, in writing, of the following:
1. that the school has identified the student as having a substantial deficiency in reading
 2. a description of current services provided to the student
 3. a description of proposed supplemental instructional services and supports that will be provided to the student that are designed to remediate the identified areas of reading deficiency
 4. that the statutorily prescribed assessment is not the sole determinant of promotion and that additional evaluations and assessments are available to the student to assist parents and the District in knowing when a student is reading at or above grade level and ready for promotion, ~~and~~
 5. that the student will be retained in the third grade if ~~the student~~ ~~he~~ does not attain a score in the statutorily prescribed level on the third grade English Language Arts assessment unless the student is exempt as delineated below, ~~and~~
 6. a statement that connects the child's proficiency level in reading to long-term outcomes of success related to proficiency in reading

D. For each student identified to be "not on track", the District shall:

1. provide intensive reading ~~instruction~~ ~~intervention~~ services and regular diagnostic assessments immediately following the identification of a reading deficiency until the development of a reading improvement and monitoring plan;

The intervention services shall be aligned with the science of reading as defined under State law and include research-based reading strategies that have been shown to be successful in improving reading among low-performing readers and instruction targeted to the student's identified reading deficiencies.
2. develop a reading improvement and monitoring plan (RIMP) within sixty (60) days of learning of the reading deficiency, which will be provided until the student achieves the required level of skill in reading for the child's current grade level; ~~within sixty (60) days of learning of the reading deficiency;~~

The District shall involve the student's parent/guardian and classroom teacher in developing the plan.

3. assign a teacher who has at least one (1) year of teaching experience and satisfies one (1) or more of the following criteria:
 - a. holds a reading endorsement and has attained a passing score on the corresponding assessment, as applicable
 - b. has obtained a master's degree with a major in reading
 - c. was rated "most effective" for reading instruction consecutively for the most recent two (2) years based on assessments of student growth measures developed by a vendor and that is on the list of ~~DEW-approved~~ ~~State Board-approved~~ student assessments
 - d. was rated "above expected value added" in reading instruction, as determined by criteria established by the ~~DEW/ODE~~, for the most recent consecutive two (2) years
 - e. has earned a passing score on a ~~DEW-approved~~ ~~State Board-approved~~ rigorous test of principles of scientifically research-based reading instruction
 - f. holds an educator license for teaching grades pre-kindergarten through three (3) or four (4) through nine (9) issued on or after July 1, 2017

~~The~~ For a student who enters third grade for the first time on or after July 1, 2013, the District may alternatively assign a teacher with less than one (1) year of teaching experience, provided the teacher meets at least one (1) of the criteria (a-f) set forth above and the teacher is assigned a qualified teacher mentor. The student may receive reading intervention or remediation services from a duly licensed speech-language pathologist.

~~Additionally, a student who enters third grade for the first time on or after July 1, 2013, but prior to July 1, 2016, may be assigned a teacher who holds an ODE-approved alternative credential or has successfully completed ODE-approved training that is based on principles of scientifically research-based reading instruction.~~

Finally, nothing in this Policy shall prevent a teacher, other than a student's classroom teacher (i.e., teacher of record), from providing the requisite reading intervention or remediation services to the student, so long as the assigned teacher has at least one (1) year of teaching experience, satisfies at least one (1) of the criteria (a-f) set forth above, and both the classroom teacher and the building Principal agree to the assignment. Such an assignment must be documented in the student's reading improvement and monitoring plan.

Reading Improvement and Monitoring Plan (RIMP)

A reading improvement and monitoring plan will be provided until the student achieves the required level of skill in reading for the student's current grade level. The RIMP reading improvement and monitoring plan developed for students identified as "not on track" shall include:

- A. Identification of the student's specific reading deficiency;
- B. a description of proposed supplemental instructional services and support that will be provided to the student to remediate the identified reading deficiencies;
- C. opportunities for the student's parent/guardian to be involved in the instructional services;
- D. a process to monitor the implementation of the student's instructional services;
- E. a reading curriculum during regular school hours that assists students to read at grade level, provides scientifically based and reliable assessments, and provides initial and ongoing analysis of each student's reading progress; and
- F. a statement that if the student does not attain at least the equivalent level of achievement pursuant to R.C. 3301.0710(A), the student may be retained in third grade; and
- G. high-dosage tutoring opportunities aligned with the student's classroom instruction through a State-approved vendor on the list of high-quality tutoring vendors, or a locally approved opportunity that aligns with high-dosage tutoring best practices. High-dosage tutoring shall include additional instruction time of at least three (3) days per week, or at least fifty (50) hours over thirty-six (36) weeks.

Beginning with the 2024-2025 school year, the District will utilize evidence-based reading intervention programs that focus on intensive, explicit, and systematic instruction in phonetic awareness, phonics, vocabulary, fluency, comprehension, and writing from a list developed by the DEW. The District will not use and will not seek a waiver to use the three-cuind approach to teach students in grades pre-kindergarten to five (5) who have a RIMP except as permitted by law. Such intervention or remediation services shall include intensive, explicit, systematic instruction, and instruction in phonetics pursuant to rules adopted by the State Board of Education.

Reporting Requirements

All assessment results and determinations shall be compiled and maintained by the District. The District shall comply with all reporting requirements of Ohio's Third Grade Reading Guarantee.

Promotion/Retention

~~For any student who enters third grade prior to July 1, 2013, and does not attain at least the equivalent level of achievement designated by R.C. 3301.0710(A)(3) on the third grade reading achievement test, unless the student is excused from taking the assessment pursuant to R.C. 3301.0711(C), the District shall do one of the following:~~

- ~~A. promote the student to fourth grade if the student's Principal and reading teacher agree that other evaluations of the student's skill in reading demonstrate that the student is academically prepared to be promoted to the fourth grade~~
- ~~B. promote the student to fourth grade, but provide the student with "intensive" intervention services in fourth grade~~
- ~~C. retain the student in the third grade~~

~~For any student who does not attain by the end of the third grade at least a score in the range designated by statute in the reading test prescribed under R.C. 3301.0710(A)(2)(c), the District shall offer intensive remediation services during the summer following third grade.~~

~~No~~Beginning with students who enter the third grade in the 2013-2014 school year, no student shall be promoted to the fourth grade who does not attain at least the equivalent level of achievement designated by R.C. 3310.0710(A)(3) on the assessment prescribed to measure skill in English language arts (ELA) expected at the end of third grade unless the student is excused from taking the assessment pursuant to R.C. 3301.0711(C), or one (1) of the following applies:

- A. the student is **an English Learner**; ~~limited-English-proficient student~~ who has been enrolled in United States schools for less than three (3) full school years and has had less than three (3) years of instruction in English as a second language program; or

ADDENDUM A

- B. the student is a child with a disability entitled to special education and related services under R. C. Chapter 3323 and the student's Individualized education program (IEP) exempts the student from retention under State law; or
- C. the student demonstrates an acceptable level of performance on an alternative standardized reading assessment as determined by the Ohio Department of Education ~~and Workforce (DEW)~~(ODE); or
- D. all of the following apply:

1. The student is a child with a disability entitled to special education and related services under R.C. Chapter 3323.
2. The student has taken the third grade English language arts achievement assessment, as prescribed.
3. The student's IEP or Section 504 Plan shows that the student has received intensive remediation in reading for two (2) school years, but still demonstrates a deficiency in reading.
4. The student previously was retained in any of grades kindergarten to three (3).

or

- E. the student received intensive remediation for reading for two (2) school years but still demonstrates a deficiency in reading and was previously retained in any of grades kindergarten to three (3). Any such student shall continue to receive intensive reading instruction in grade four (4). The instruction shall include an altered instructional day that includes specialized diagnostic information and specific research-based reading strategies that have been successful in improving reading among low-performing readers; or

- F. a student's parent or guardian, in consultation with the student's reading teacher and building principal, requests that the student, regardless of if the student is reading at grade level, be promoted to fourth grade. Any such student will continue to receive intensive reading instruction in the same manner as a student retained until the student is able to read at grade level.

A student retained under the provisions of the Third Grade Reading Guarantee and this policy shall be considered for mid-year promotion if that student demonstrates that the student/he is reading at or above grade level, in accordance with the provisions of Policy 5410 - Promotion, Academic Acceleration, Placement, and Retention. Such action shall be considered in consultation with the parent/guardian and the Student Intervention Team and with the concurrence of the building administrator.

Intensive Remediation Services

Remediation services for students on reading improvement and monitoring plans shall be aligned with the science of reading as defined by State law and include research-based reading strategies that have been shown to be successful in improving reading among low-performing readers.

If a student is retained by the Third Grade Reading Guarantee, the student must be provided intense remediation services until the student/he is able to read at grade level. The remediation services must include intense interventions and consist of at least ninety (90) minutes of reading instruction daily.

The District shall provide the option for students to receive reading intervention services from one (1) or more providers other than the District. Both the District and the DEWODE have the authority to screen and approve such providers.

Interventions for students who have been retained may include:

- A. small group instruction;
- B. reduced student-teacher ratios;
- C. more frequent progress monitoring;
- D. tutoring or mentoring;
- E. transition classes containing third and fourth grade students;
- F. summer reading camp; or
- G. extended school day, week, or year.

Intensive remediation services shall be targeted to the student's identified reading deficiency.

Nothing in this policy shall prevent the District from assigning a teacher to teach reading to any student who is an English Learner/language learner and has been in the United States for three (3) years or less, or to a student who has an individualized education program ("IEP"). If that teacher holds a DEWODE-approved alternative credential or has successfully completed DEWODE-approved training that is based on principles of scientifically research-based reading instruction.

ADDENDUM A

This policy shall be reviewed and updated periodically as necessary.

© Neola 2023

Legal

A.C. 3301-13, 3301-35

R.C. 3301.079, 0710, .0711, .0714, .0715, 3313.608, 3313.608(D), 3313.6012,
3313.6028

Last Modified by Norm Burkhardt on November 17, 2023



Book	Policy Manual
Section	Policies Recommended for the BOE (42.1 Fall 2023 Update)
Title	EMPLOYMENT OF PERSONNEL FOR CO-CURRICULAR/EXTRA-CURRICULAR ACTIVITIES
Code	po3120.08
Status	
Adopted	November 2, 2015
Last Revised	December 5, 2022

3120.08 - EMPLOYMENT OF PERSONNEL FOR CO-CURRICULAR/EXTRA-CURRICULAR ACTIVITIES

The Board of Education may employ professional staff for co-curricular/extra-curricular activities. However, the Board may find it necessary to employ, on a part-time basis, coaches or activity sponsors who are not members of the professional staff.

The Board authorizes the Superintendent to recommend candidates for employment by the Board.

Pursuant to R.C. 3319.303 and accompanying regulations, an individual who does not hold a valid educator license is required to obtain a Pupil Activity Permit issued by the State Board of Education to serve as a coach or activity sponsor, regardless of whether the activity involves athletics, regular physical activity, or any special health and safety considerations.

To be employed by the Board, each coach or activity sponsor shall hold a valid Pupil Activity Program Permit as required by law, have any other necessary qualifications, have been properly interviewed, and shall sign an employment contract which includes the conditions of employment, compensation arrangements, and contract termination procedures. Such qualifications shall include completion of a sudden cardiac arrest training course approved by the Department of Health, in accordance with R.C. 3319.303. The qualifications shall also include completion of a student mental health training course approved by the Department of Mental Health and Addiction Services. The mental health training course may be combined with or part of another training course. Such training must be completed each time the individual applies for or renews a Pupil Activity Program Permit. An employee must submit a copy of an active Pupil Activity Program Permit to both the Treasurer/CFO and the Superintendent before the Board will pay any compensation.

In accordance with Policy 3120, no staff member, coach, or activity sponsor employed in a position for which licensure or permit is required may be paid until evidence of such appropriate licensure or permit valid for the effective dates of such services has been received by the Superintendent and transmitted to the Treasurer.

Personnel must also pass a background check performed by the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation and the Federal Bureau of Investigation (see Policy 3121). Personnel must also pass a pre-employment drug screening.

The Board may renew the contract of any nonlicensed individual, currently employed by the Board for one or more years, without first offering the position held by that individual to employees of the District who are licensed individuals or advertising the position as available to any qualified licensed individuals who are not currently employed by the Board unless otherwise prohibited by a collective bargaining agreement.

No individual employed by the Board for any co-curricular or extra-curricular activity may accept compensation from any third party or source, including, but not limited to booster, parent or other District support organizations, for the performance of his/her official duties or as a supplement to his/her compensation from the Board.

No individual serving as a volunteer for co-curricular/extra-curricular activities may accept compensation from any third party or source, including, but not limited to booster, parent or other District support organizations, for the performance of his/her official duties as a volunteer on behalf of the Board.

Revised 11/6/17
Revised 11/22/17
Revised 6/8/20

© Neola 20222023

Legal

ADDENDUM A

A.C. 3301-27-01, Ohio Ethics Commission Advisory Opinion 2008-01

R.C. 3319.303, 3319.36, 3313.53, 3313.539, 3319.39

Last Modified by Norm Burkhardt on November 11, 2023



Book	Policy Manual
Section	Policies Recommended for the BOE (42.1 Fall 2023 Update)
Title	EMPLOYMENT OF PERSONNEL FOR CO-CURRICULAR/EXTRA-CURRICULAR ACTIVITIES
Code	po4120.08
Status	
Adopted	November 2, 2015
Last Revised	June 8, 2020

4120.08 - EMPLOYMENT OF PERSONNEL FOR CO-CURRICULAR/EXTRA-CURRICULAR ACTIVITIES

The Board of Education may find it necessary to employ, on a part-time basis, coaches or activity sponsors who are not members of the professional staff.

The Board authorizes the Superintendent to recommend candidates for employment by the Board.

Each coach or activity sponsor shall hold a valid Pupil Activity Program Permit issued by the State Board of Education under R.C. 3319.303(A), have any other necessary qualifications, have been properly interviewed, and shall sign an employment contract which includes the conditions of employment, compensation arrangements, and contract termination procedures. Such qualifications shall include completion of a sudden cardiac arrest training course approved by the Department of Health, in accordance with R.C. 3319.303. The qualifications shall also include completion of a student mental health training course approved by the Department of Mental Health and Addiction Services. The mental health training course may be combined with or part of another training course. Such training must be completed each time the individual applies for or renews a Pupil Activity Program Permit. An employee must submit a copy of an active Pupil Activity Program Permit to both the Treasurer/CFO and the Superintendent before the Board will pay any compensation.

No staff member employed in a position for which licensure or permit is required may be paid until evidence of such appropriate licensure or permit valid for the effective dates of such services has been received by the Superintendent and transmitted to the Treasurer.

Personnel must also pass a background check performed by the Bureau of Criminal Identification and Investigation and the Federal Bureau of Investigation (see Policy 4121). Personnel must also pass a pre-employment drug screening.

The Board may renew the contract of any nonlicensed individual, currently employed by the Board for one or more years, without first offering the position held by that individual to employees of the District who are licensed individuals or advertising the position as available to any qualified licensed individuals who are not currently employed by the Board unless otherwise prohibited by a collective bargaining agreement.

© Neola 20202023

Legal	R.C. 3313.53, 3319.291, 3319.303, 3319.36, 3319.39 A.C. 3301-27-01, Ohio Ethics Commission Advisory Opinion 2008-01
-------	--

Last Modified by Norm Burkhardt on November 11, 2023



Book	Policy Manual
Section	Policies Recommended for the BOE (42.1 Fall 2023 Update)
Title	IMMUNIZATION
Code	po5320
Status	
Adopted	October 12, 2015
Last Revised	June 13, 2016

5320 - IMMUNIZATION

In order to safeguard the school community from the spread of certain communicable diseases and in recognition that prevention is a means of combating the spread of disease, the Board of Education requires all students to be immunized ~~(or in the process of being immunized)~~ against poliomyelitis, measles (aka rubeola), diphtheria, rubella (German measles), pertussis, tetanus, mumps, and other diseases ~~others~~ legally designated in accordance with State statutes, unless specifically exempt for medical or other reasons (see below). The Board requires that students who start kindergarten during or after the school year beginning in 1999 be immunized against Hepatitis B or be in the process of being immunized. The Board also requires that students who start kindergarten during or after the school year beginning in 2006 be immunized against chicken pox. The Board further requires that students enrolled in grades seven (7) through twelve (12) during or after the school year beginning in 2016 be immunized against meningococcal disease in accordance with the administration procedures prescribed by the Ohio Department of Health (see AG 5320). This policy pertains to both students who currently attend school in the District and those eligible to attend.

"In the process of being immunized" means the student has received at least the first dose of the immunization sequence and presents written evidence to the Superintendent or Principal of each subsequent dosage required to obtain immunization at the intervals prescribed by the Director of Health. Any student previously admitted under the "in process of being immunized" provision who has not complied with the immunization intervals prescribed by the Director of Health shall be excluded from school on the fifteenth (15th) day of the following school year. Any student so excluded shall be readmitted upon showing evidence to the Superintendent or Principal of progress on the Director of Health's interval schedule.

A student does not have to be vaccinated against a disease if any of the following apply:

- A. The student presents a signed statement from a parent, guardian or physician indicating the student has had measles, mumps, or chicken pox and does not need to be immunized.
- B. A physician certifies in writing that immunization from a particular disease is medically contraindicated.
- C. The student presents a written statement signed by a parent or guardian in which the parent or guardian declines to have the student immunized for reasons of conscience, including religious convictions.

The Superintendent may exempt a student from being immunized against either or both measles and mumps if the student presents a signed statement from a parent or physician indicating s/he has had measles or mumps and does not need to be immunized. The student will be allowed to attend school only if a physician's statement indicates there is no danger of contagion. In case of an outbreak of the disease for which the student has not been immunized or an epidemic, the Superintendent shall not allow the student to attend school.

In the case of a chicken pox epidemic in the school's population, the Superintendent may deny admission to a student otherwise exempted from the chicken pox immunization requirement. The Superintendent shall prescribe methods whereby the academic standing of a student who is denied admission during a chicken pox epidemic is preserved. The denial of admission shall cease when the epidemic no longer exists.

The Superintendent may also exempt a student from immunization if a physician certifies in writing that immunization from a particular disease is medically contraindicated.

A student may also be exempted from immunization if a parent or guardian objects for good cause, including religious conviction.

ADDENDUM A

A student who has not completed Immunization ~~(-)~~ may not be admitted to school, except as is consistent with the law ~~(-)~~ may be admitted to school provided the necessary immunizations are being received in the fastest time consistent with the approved immunization schedule and good medical practice.

The Board believes that Immunization is the primary responsibility of the parent(s). For those students who do not have ready access to private or public health services, immunizations shall be provided at public expense ~~as required by State Statute and if the student qualifies for free or reduced priced meals.~~

Any Immunization program conducted by this District requires prior approval of the Board and can only extend to those immunizations provided for by statute and the guidelines of this Board.

The Board shall keep an Immunization record for each student, available in writing to the student's parent or guardian upon request.

© Neola 2023~~16~~

Legal

R.C. 3313.67, 3313.671

Last Modified by Norm Burkhardt on November 17, 2023



Book	Policy Manual
Section	Policies Recommended for the BOE (42.1 Fall 2023 Update)
Title	USE OF MEDICATIONS
Code	po5330
Status	
Adopted	October 12, 2015
Last Revised	April 9, 2018

5330 - USE OF MEDICATIONS

The Board of Education shall not be responsible for the diagnosis and treatment of student illness. With the exception of diabetes care covered under Policy 5336, the administration of prescribed medication and/or medically-prescribed treatments to a student during school hours will be permitted only when failure to do so would jeopardize the health of the student, the student would not be able to attend school if the medication or treatment were not made available during school hours, or if the child is disabled and requires medication to benefit from ~~the~~ his/her educational program.

For purposes of this policy, "medication" shall include all medicines including those prescribed by a licensed health professional authorized to prescribe drugs and any nonprescribed (over-the-counter) drugs, preparations, and/or remedies. "Treatment" refers both to the manner in which a medication is administered and to health-care procedures which require special training, such as catheterization.

Before any medication (i.e., a drug) or treatment may be administered to any student during school hours, the Board shall require a written statement from a licensed health professional authorized to prescribe drugs ("prescriber") accompanied by the written authorization of the parent (see Form 5330 F1, Form 5330 F1a, and Form 5330 F1b). These documents shall be kept on file in the office of the clinic, and made available to the persons designated by this policy as authorized to administer medication or treatment. A copy of the parent's written request and authorization and the prescriber's written statement must be given, by the next school day following the District's receipt of the documents, to the person authorized to administer drugs to the student for whom the authorization and statement have been received. No student is allowed to provide or sell any type of over-the-counter medication to another student. Violations of this rule will be considered violations of Policy 5530 - Drug Prevention and of the Student Code of Conduct/Discipline Code.

Only medication in its original container; labeled with the date, if a prescription; the student's name; and exact dosage will be administered. The Superintendent shall determine a location in each building where the medications to be administered under this policy shall be stored, which shall be a locked storage place, unless the medications require refrigeration in which case they shall be stored in a refrigerator in a place not commonly used by students, and unless the medication to be administered is diabetes medication, which must be kept in an easily accessible location pursuant to Policy 5336.

Parents may administer medication or treatment, with the exception of diabetes care covered under Policy 5336, but only in the presence of a designated school employee.

Additionally, students may administer medication or treatment to themselves, if authorized in writing by their parents and a licensed health professional authorized to prescribe drugs but only in the presence of a designated school employee with the exception of students authorized to attend to their diabetes care and management pursuant to Policy 5336.

However, students shall be permitted to carry and use, as necessary, an asthma inhaler, provided the student has prior written permission from ~~the student's~~ his/her parent and physician, and has submitted Form 5330 F3 - Authorization for the Possession and Use of Asthma Inhalers/Other Emergency Medication(s) to the principal and any school nurse assigned to the building.

Additionally, students shall be permitted to carry and use, as necessary, an epinephrine autoinjector to treat anaphylaxis, provided the student has prior written approval from the prescriber of the medication and ~~the student's~~ his/her parent/guardian if the student is a minor, and has submitted written approval (Form 5330 F4 - Authorization for the Possession and Use of Epinephrine Autoinjector (epi-pen)) to the principal and any school nurse assigned to the building. The parent/guardian or the student shall provide a backup dose of the medication to the principal or school nurse. This permission shall extend to any activity, event, or program sponsored by the school or in which the school participates. In the event epinephrine is administered by the student or a school employee at school or at any of the covered events, a school employee shall immediately request assistance from an emergency medical service provider (911). Students with diabetes authorized to attend to their diabetes care and management may do so in accordance with

Students shall be permitted to possess and self-administer over-the-counter topical sunscreen products while on school property or at a school-sponsored event

With the exception of diabetes care covered under Policy 5336, only employees of the Board who are licensed health professionals or who have completed a drug administration training program conducted by a licensed health professional and are designated by the Board may administer prescription drugs to students in school.

With the exception of diabetes care covered under Policy 5336, provided they have completed the requisite training, the following staff are authorized to administer medication and treatment to students:

- A. principal
- B. teacher
- C. school nurse
- D. building secretary
- E. aide
- F. others as designated by student's IEP and/or 504 plan
- G. clinic designee

No employee will be required to administer a drug to a student if the employee objects, on the basis of religious convictions, to administering the drug.

With the exception of diabetes care covered under Policy 5336, the Board shall permit the administration by a licensed nurse any medication requiring intravenous or intramuscular injection or the insertion of a device into the body when both the medication and the procedure are prescribed by a licensed health professional authorized to prescribe drugs and the nurse all necessary training.

Students who may require administration of an emergency medication may have such medication in their possession upon written authorization of their parent(s) or, such medication, upon being identified as aforementioned, may be stored in the clinic office and administered in accord with this policy and Policy 5336.

The Superintendent shall prepare administrative guidelines, as needed, to address the proper implementation of this policy.

© Neola ~~2017~~2023

Legal

R.C. 3313.712, 3313.713, 3313.7110, 3313.716, 3313.718, 4729.01

Last Modified by Norm Burkhardt on November 17, 2023



Book	Policy Manual
Section	Policies Recommended for the BOE (42.1 Fall 2023 Update)
Title	CARE OF STUDENTS WITH ACTIVE SEIZURE DISORDERS
Code	po5337 New
Status	From Neola

5337 - CARE OF STUDENTS WITH ACTIVE SEIZURE DISORDERS

The Board of Education is committed to ensuring that each student enrolled in the District who has an active seizure disorder receives appropriate and needed care in accordance with an order signed by the student's treating practitioner.

The school nurse or another designated employee of the District will create an individualized seizure action plan for each student with an active seizure disorder diagnosis. The plan will be developed in collaboration with a student's parent or guardian and the student, when appropriate. The plan will include the following:

- A. a written request signed by the parent, guardian, or other person having the care or charge of the student to have one (1) or more drugs prescribed for a seizure disorder administered to the student;
- B. a written statement from the student's treating medical practitioner that provides the drug information required by State law and Board policy for each drug prescribed and administered to the student;
- C. any other component required by the State Board of Education.

The term *treating practitioner* means a properly licensed physician, advanced practice registered nurse, or physician's assistant who has primary responsibility for treating a student's seizure disorder and has been identified as such by the student's parent, legal guardian, or other person having care or charge of the student, or if the student is eighteen (18) years of age, by the student.

Individual seizure action plans are only valid for the school year in which they are written and shall be renewed at least annually at the beginning of each school year. A physical copy of the plan will be maintained in the office of the school nurse, or with a building administrator if the District does not employ a full-time nurse.

The school nurse, or the building administrator if the District does not have a school nurse, will provide written notice summarizing the existence and content of the plan to all school employees, contractors, and volunteers who regularly interact with the student, have a legitimate educational interest in the student, are responsible for the direct supervision of the student, or provide transportation to the student to and from school or a school-related activity. The notice and the seizure plan will be maintained confidentially in accordance with Board policy and State law.

The school nurse or a building administrator will coordinate the student's care while at school and school-related activities and will ensure that appropriate staff, contractors, and volunteers who receive notice of the plan are also trained in the care of students with seizures. The nurse or a building administrator will also identify each individual who has received training to administer drugs prescribed for the treatment of seizure disorders.

The Superintendent will designate at least one (1) employee who does not serve as the school nurse for each school building operated by the Board to be trained every two (2) years on the implementation of seizure action plans. The Board will make arrangements for the training, which will include and be consistent with guidelines and best practices established by a nonprofit organization selected by the Department of Education that supports the welfare of individuals with epilepsy and seizure disorders. The training will address all of the following topics:

- A. recognizing the signs and symptoms of a seizure;
- B. the appropriate treatment for a student who exhibits the symptoms of a seizure; and
- C. administering drugs prescribed for seizure disorders in accordance with State law.

The training will not exceed one (1) hour in length and will qualify as a professional development activity for the renewal of an educator license. If the training is provided to the District on portable media by a nonprofit entity, the training shall be provided free of charge.

ADDENDUM A

Additionally, the Board shall require each person it employs as an administrator, guidance counselor, teacher, or bus driver to complete a minimum of one (1) hour of self-study or in-person training on seizure disorders. All employees who are employed as of October 3, 2023 will complete the training within twenty-four (24) months after that date. Thereafter, newly hired employees will complete the training within ninety (90) days. The training will qualify as a professional development activity for the renewal of an educator license.

© Neola 2023

Legal

R.C. 3313.7117

Last Modified by Norm Burkhardt on November 11, 2023



Book	Policy Manual
Section	Policies Recommended for the BOE (42.1 Fall 2023 Update)
Title	FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT (FLSA)
Code	po6700
Status	
Adopted	October 12, 2015
Last Revised	December 5, 2022

6700 - FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT (FLSA)

It is the Board of Education's policy to comply with the provisions of the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) and its implementing regulations. The Board shall pay at least the minimum wage required by the FLSA and Ohio law and local municipal law/ordinance/regulation to all covered, non-exempt employees, unless an employee's individual contract or the terms of an applicable collective bargaining agreement provide for greater benefits that mandated by Federal, State or local law.

Non-exempt employees are hourly employees, or salaried employees who do not qualify for a professional, administrative, executive, computer, or any other exemption under the FLSA.

Non-exempt employees who work (i.e., perform work on behalf of or for the benefit of the Board) more than forty (40) hours during a given work week will receive overtime pay in accordance with the FLSA for all hours worked in excess of forty (40). Work week is defined as the seven (7) day period of time beginning on Monday at 12:00 a.m. and continuing to the following Sunday at 11:59 p.m.

The Superintendent shall determine the necessity and availability of overtime work. Overtime may be authorized only by a supervisor and will be used primarily to address circumstances of an emergency or temporary nature. Non-exempt employees who work overtime without prior approval from the Superintendent or a supervisor may be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination.

Exempt employees are individuals who are exempt from the FLSA minimum wage and overtime provisions. These employees include, but are not limited to, persons employed in bona fide executive, administrative, and professional positions, and certain computer employees. To qualify for the exemption, employees generally must meet certain tests regarding their specific job duties and be paid a minimum per week salary as established by the Department of Labor. The salary requirement does not apply to teachers. Exempt computer employees must also meet the minimum per week or per hour salary established by the Department of Labor. Being paid on a "salary basis" means an employee regularly receives a predetermined amount of compensation each pay period on a weekly, or less frequent, basis. Additionally, the predetermined amount cannot be reduced because of variation in the quality or quantity of the employee's work. Subject to the exceptions listed below, an exempt employee must receive the full salary for any work week in which the employee performs any work, regardless of the number of days or hours worked.

Deductions may be made to an otherwise exempt employee's salary in certain circumstances without jeopardizing the employee's exempt status. Deductions may occur under the following circumstances:

- A. the employee is absent from work for one (1) or more full days for personal reasons other than sickness or disability
- B. the employee is absent from work for one (1) or more full days due to sickness or disability if the deduction is made in accordance with a bona fide plan, policy or practice of providing compensation for salary lost due to illness
- C. to offset amounts employees receive as jury or witness fees, or for military pay
- D. for unpaid disciplinary suspensions of one (1) or more full days imposed in good faith for workplace conduct rule infractions
- E. for penalties imposed in good faith for infractions of safety rules of major significance

In addition to the foregoing exempt employees who accrue personal leave and sick leave may have their pay reduced or may be placed on unpaid leave for absences due to personal reasons of less than one (1) full day when leave is not used by the employee because:

- A. permission to use leave has not been sought or permission has been sought and denied;
- B. the employee's accrued leave has been exhausted; or
- C. the employee chooses to use leave without pay.

Deductions from an exempt employee's pay for absences due to a budget-required furlough shall not disqualify the employee from being paid on a salary basis except in the workweek in which the furlough occurs and for which the employee's pay is accordingly reduced.

The Board shall also not be required to pay the full salary in the initial or terminal week of employment if the employee does not work the entire week, or for weeks in which an exempt employee takes unpaid leave under the Family & Medical Leave Act.

The Board recognizes that with limited legally permissible exceptions as described as described, no deductions should be taken from the salaries of exempt employees. If an exempt employee believes that an improper deduction has been made to the exempt employee's salary, the employee should immediately report this information to the Treasurer or the employee's immediate supervisor. Reports of improper deductions will be promptly investigated. If it is determined that an improper deduction has occurred, the employee will be promptly reimbursed for any improper deduction made, and the Board will make a good faith commitment to avoid any recurrence of the error.

This policy shall be distributed to employees upon initial hire, and to all employees on an annual basis.

Reasonable Break Time for Nursing Mothers

As required by Federal law, the District shall take steps necessary to support staff members who decide to breastfeed their infants by providing additional unpaid reasonable break time, as necessary, for an ~~employee~~ ~~qualified employee~~ to express breast milk for their nursing child, for one (1) year after the child's birth, on District premises.

Prior to returning to work from maternity leave, it shall be the employee's responsibility to notify their supervisor of their intent to continue breastfeeding their infant(s) and of their need to express milk during work hours. Further, it shall be the responsibility of the employee to keep their supervisor informed of their needs in this regard throughout the period of lactation.

The building administrator shall designate a private area, other than a restroom, where an employee can express breast milk. The designated area shall be a space where intrusion from coworkers, students, and the public shall be prevented, and one where an employee who is using this area can be shielded from view. Employees who telework must also be free from observation by any employer-provided video systems, including video or security cameras or web conferencing platforms.

The frequency and duration of breaks needed to express milk may vary. An employee will be responsible for informing the Principal or their supervisor of their needs as they change over time. The Principal or supervisor will work with the employee to adjust the employee's schedule and ensure that any required duties are covered. Employees shall be permitted to express milk during regularly scheduled break periods. The Principal or the employee's supervisor shall make adjustments in the employee's break schedule if the time of the regular breaks needs to be adjusted or if additional and/or longer breaks are needed. In the event that more breaks are needed or the break(s) need to be longer than the time available during a paid break, the additional time required shall be unpaid and the employee's work schedule or work day may be modified accordingly. An employee shall be enabled to express milk during regularly scheduled break periods. The Principal or employee's supervisor shall make an accommodation if the time of regular breaks needs to be adjusted or if additional and/or longer breaks are needed. In the event that more breaks are needed or the break(s) need to be longer than legally required, the additional time required shall be unpaid, and the employee's work schedule or work day shall, therefore, be modified accordingly. The Principal or the employee's supervisor shall work with the employee to make these necessary modifications.

Revised 11/6/17
Revised 11/22/17

© Neola 20222023

Legal 29 C.F.R. Part 541
 29 U.S.C. 201 et seq.
 R.C. Chapter 4111

Last Modified by Norm Burkhardt on November 17, 2023



Book	Policy Manual
Section	Policies Recommended for the BOE (42.1 Fall 2023 Update)
Title	STUDENT RECORDS
Code	po8330
Status	
Adopted	October 12, 2015
Last Revised	December 5, 2022

8330 - STUDENT RECORDS

In order to provide appropriate educational services and programming, the Board of Education must collect, retain, and use information about individual students. Simultaneously, the Board recognizes the need to safeguard students' privacy and restrict access to students' personally identifiable information.

Student "personally identifiable information" ("PII") includes, but is not limited to: the student's name; the name of the student's parent or other family members; the address of the student or student's family; a personal identifier, such as the student's social security number, student number, or biometric record; other indirect identifiers, such as the student's date of birth, place of birth, and mother's maiden name; other information that, alone or in combination, is linked or linkable to a specific student that would allow a reasonable person in the school community, who does not have personal knowledge of the relevant circumstances, to identify the student with reasonable certainty; or information requested by a person who the District reasonably believes knows the identity of the student to whom the education record relates.

The Board is responsible for the records of all students who attend or have attended schools in this District. Only records mandated by the State or Federal government and/or necessary and relevant to the function of the School District or specifically permitted by this Board will be compiled by Board employees.

In all cases, permitted, narrative information in student records shall be objectively-based on the personal observation or knowledge of the originator.

Student records shall be available only to students and their parents, eligible students, designated school officials who have a legitimate educational interest in the information, or to other individuals or organizations as permitted by law.

The term "parents" includes legal guardians or other persons standing in loco parentis (such as a grandparent or stepparent with whom the child lives, or a person who is legally responsible for the welfare of the child). The term "eligible student" refers to a student who is eighteen (18) years of age or older, or a student of any age who is enrolled in a postsecondary institution.

Both parents shall have equal access to student records unless stipulated otherwise by court order or law. In the case of eligible students, parents may be allowed access to the records without the student's consent, provided the student is considered a dependent under section 152 of the Internal Revenue Code.

A school official is a person employed by the Board as an administrator, supervisor, teacher/instructor (including substitutes), or support staff member (including health or medical staff and law enforcement unit personnel); and a person serving on the Board. The Board further designates the following individuals and entities as "school officials" for the purpose of FERPA.

- A. persons or companies with whom the Board has contracted to perform a specific task (such as an attorney, auditor, insurance representative, or medical consultant), and
- B. contractors, consultants, volunteers, or other parties to whom the Board has outsourced a service or function otherwise performed by the Board employees (e.g. a therapist, authorized information technology (IT) staff, and approved online educational service providers)

The above-identified outside parties must (a) perform institutional services or functions for which the Board would otherwise use its employees, (b) be under the direct control of the Board with respect to the use and maintenance of education records, and (c) be subject to the requirements of 34 C.F.R. 99.33(a) governing the use and re-disclosure of PII from education records.

Finally, a parent or student serving on an official committee, such as a disciplinary or grievance committee, or assisting another school official in performing the school official's tasks (including volunteers) is also considered a school official for purposes of FERPA provided the parent or student meets the above-referenced criteria applicable to other outside parties.

"Legitimate educational interest" is defined as a "direct or delegated responsibility for helping the student achieve one (1) or more of the educational goals of the District" or if the record is necessary in order for the school official to perform an administrative, supervisory, or instructional task or to perform a service or benefit for the student or the student's family. The Board directs that reasonable and appropriate methods (including but not limited to physical and/or technological access controls) are utilized to control access to student records and to make certain that school officials obtain access to only those education records in which they have legitimate educational interest.

The Board authorizes the administration to:

- A. forward student records, including academic records, student assessment data, and disciplinary records including records pertaining to suspensions and expulsions, upon request to a private or public school or school district in which a student of this District is enrolled, seeks or intends to enroll, or is instructed to enroll, on a full-time or part-time basis, or alternatively send written notice to the requesting school if there is no record of the student's attendance. Records will be released upon condition that:
 1. a reasonable attempt is made to notify the student's parent or eligible student of the transfer (unless the disclosure is initiated by the parent or eligible student; there is no record of the student having attended school in the District or the Board's annual notification - Form 8330 F9 - includes a notice that the Board will forward education records to other agencies or institutions that have requested the records and in which the student seeks or intends to enroll or is already enrolled so long as the disclosure is for purposes related to the student's enrollment or transfer);
 2. within five (5) school days after receiving the request, either the student records shall be transmitted or a written notice will be provided if there is no record of the student's attendance;
 3. except as when expressly prohibited by law, the District is authorized to withhold grades and credits to enforce payment of outstanding fees and charges, and further, may withhold all of a student's school records if there is \$2,500 or more of outstanding debt attributed to the student, and will only release the records once the debt has been paid;
 4. the parent or eligible student, upon request, receives a copy of the record; and
 5. the parent or eligible student, upon request, has an opportunity for a hearing to challenge the content of the record;
- B. forward student records, including disciplinary records including records pertaining with respect to suspensions and expulsions, upon request to a juvenile detention facility in which the student has been placed, or a juvenile court that has taken jurisdiction of the student;
- C. forward student records, including disciplinary records including records pertaining with respect to suspensions and expulsions, upon request to a public school or school district in which a student in foster care is enrolled;

Such records shall be transferred within one (1) school day of the enrolling school's request;

- A. provide "personally-identifiable" information to appropriate parties, including parents of an eligible student, whose knowledge of the information is necessary to protect the health or safety of the student or other individuals, if there is an articulable and significant threat to the health or safety of a student or other individuals, considering the totality of the circumstances;
- B. report a crime committed by a child to appropriate authorities, and, with respect to reporting a crime committed by a student with a disability, to transmit copies of the student's special education and disciplinary records to the authorities for their consideration;
- C. release de-identified records and information in accordance with Federal regulations;
- D. disclose personally identifiable information from education records, without consent, to organizations conducting studies "for, or on behalf of" the District for purposes of developing, validating or administering predictive tests, administering student aid programs, or improving instruction;

Information disclosed under this exception must be protected so that students and parents cannot be personally identified by anyone other than a representative of the organization conducting the study, and must be destroyed when no longer needed for the study. In order to release information under this provision, the District will enter into a written agreement with the recipient organization that specifies the purpose of the study. (See Form 8330 F14) Further, the following personally identifiable information will not be disclosed to any entity: a student or the student's family member's social security number(s); religion; political party affiliation; voting history; or biometric information.

While the disclosure of personally identifiable information (other than social security numbers, religion, political party affiliation, voting record, or biometric information) is allowed under this exception, it is recommended that de-identified information be used whenever possible. This reduces the risk of unauthorized disclosure.

- E. disclose personally identifiable information from education records without consent, to authorized representatives of the Comptroller General, the Attorney General, and the Secretary of Education, as well as state and local educational authorities;

The disclosed records must be used to audit or evaluate a federal or state-supported education program, or to enforce or comply with federal requirements related to those education programs. A written agreement between the parties is required under this exception. (See Form 8330 F16)

The District will verify that the authorized representative complies with FERPA regulations.

This written agreement must include: (1) designation of the receiving entity as an authorized representative; (2) specification of the information to be disclosed; (3) specification that the purpose of the disclosure is to carry out an audit or evaluation of a government-supported educational program or to enforce or comply with the program's legal requirements; (4) a summary of the activity that includes a description of methodology and an explanation of why personally identifiable information is necessary to accomplish the activity; (5) a statement requiring the organization to destroy all personally identifiable information when it is no longer needed for the study, along with a specific time period in which the information must be destroyed; and (6) a statement of policies and procedures that will protect personally identifiable information from further disclosure or unauthorized use.

Under the audit exception, the District will use "reasonable methods" to verify that the authorized representative complies with FERPA regulations. Specifically, the District will verify, to the greatest extent practical, that the personally identifiable information is used only for the audit, evaluation or enforcement of a government-supported educational program. The District will also ascertain the legitimacy of the audit or evaluation and will only disclose the specific records that the authorized representative needs. Further, the District will require the authorized representative to use the records only for the specified purpose and not to disclose the information any further, such as for another audit or evaluation. Finally, the District will verify that the information is destroyed when no longer needed for the audit, evaluation or compliance activity.

- F. request each person or party requesting access to a student's record to abide by Federal regulations and State laws concerning the disclosure of information.

The Board will comply with a legitimate request for access to a student's records within a reasonable period of time but not more than forty-five (45) days after receiving the request or within such shorter period as may be applicable to students with disabilities. Upon the request of the viewer, a record shall be reproduced, unless said record is copyrighted, or otherwise restricted, and the viewer may be charged a fee equivalent to the cost of reproduction. Based upon reasonable requests, viewers of education records will receive explanation and interpretation of the records.

The Board shall maintain a record of each request for access and each disclosure of personally identifiable information. Such disclosure records will indicate the student, person viewing the record, their legitimate interest in the information, information disclosed, date of disclosure, and date parental/eligible student consent was obtained (if required).

Only directory information regarding a student shall be released to any person or party, other than the student or the student's parent, without the written consent of the parent or, if the student is an eligible student, without the written consent of the student, except to those persons or parties stipulated by the Board's policy and administrative guidelines and/or those specified in the law.

DIRECTORY INFORMATION

Each year, the Superintendent shall provide public notice to students and their parents of the District's intent to make available, upon request, certain information known as directory information. The Board designates as student directory information: a student's name; address; telephone number; date and place of birth; major field of study; participation in officially-recognized activities and sports; height and weight, if a member of an athletic team; dates of attendance; date of graduation; and/or awards received.

Directory information shall not be provided to any organization for profit-making purposes.

Parents and eligible students may refuse to allow the Board to disclose any or all of such "directory information" upon written notification to the Board within five (5) days after receipt of the Superintendent's annual public notice.

In accordance with Federal and State law, the Board shall release the names, addresses, District-assigned e-mail addresses (if available), and telephone listings of secondary students to a recruiting officer for any branch of the United States Armed Forces or an institution of higher education who requests such information. A secondary school student or parent of the student may request in writing that the student's name, address, District-assigned e-mail addresses (if available), and telephone listing not be released without prior consent of the parent(s)/eligible student. The recruiting officer is to sign a form indicating that "any information received by the recruiting officer shall be used solely for the purpose of informing students about military service and shall not be released to any person other than individuals within the recruiting services of the Armed Forces." The Superintendent is authorized to charge mailing fees for providing this information to a recruiting officer.

Whenever consent of the parent(s)/eligible student is required for the inspection and/or release of a student's health or education records or for the release of "directory information," either parent may provide such consent unless agreed to otherwise in writing by both parents or specifically stated by court order. If the student is under the guardianship of an institution, the Superintendent shall appoint a person who has no conflicting interest to provide such written consent.

The Board may disclose directory information from former students, without student or parental consent, unless the parent or eligible student previously submitted a request that such information not be disclosed without their prior written consent.

The Board shall not permit the collection, disclosure, or use of personal information collected from students for the purpose of marketing or for selling that information (or otherwise providing that information to others for that purpose).

INSPECTION OF INFORMATION COLLECTION INSTRUMENT

The parent of a student or an eligible student has the right to inspect upon request any instrument used in the collection of personal information before the instrument is administered or distributed to a student. Personal information for this section is defined as individually identifiable information including a student or parent's first and last name, a home or other physical address (including street name and the name of the city or town), a telephone number, or a Social Security identification number. In order to review the instrument, the parent or eligible student must submit a written request to the building principal at least five (5) business days before the scheduled date of the activity. The instrument will be provided to the parent or eligible student within three (3) business days of the principal receiving the request.

The Superintendent shall directly notify the parent(s) of a student and eligible students, at least annually at the beginning of the school year, of the specific or approximate dates during the school year when such activities are scheduled or expected to be scheduled.

This section does not apply to the collection, disclosure, or use of personal information collected from students for the exclusive purpose of developing, evaluating, or providing educational products or services for, or to, students or educational institutions, such as the following:

- A. college or other postsecondary education recruitment, or military recruitment
- B. book clubs, magazines, and programs providing access to low-cost literary products
- C. curriculum and instructional materials used by elementary and secondary schools
- D. tests and assessments used by elementary and secondary schools to provide cognitive, evaluative, diagnostic, clinical, aptitude, or achievement information about students (or to generate other statistically useful data for the purpose of securing such tests and assessments) and the subsequent analysis and public release of the aggregate data from such tests and assessments
- E. the sale by students of products or services to raise funds for school-related or education-related activities
- F. student recognition programs

The Superintendent is directed to prepare administrative guidelines so that students and parents are adequately informed each year regarding their rights to:

- A. inspect and review the student's education records;
- B. request amendments if the parent believes the record is inaccurate, misleading, or violates the student's privacy rights;
- C. consent to disclosures of personally identifiable information contained in the student's education records, except to those disclosures allowed by the law;
- D. challenge Board noncompliance with a parent's request to amend the records through a hearing;
- E. file a complaint with the United States Department of Education;
- F. obtain a copy of the Board's policy and administrative guidelines on student records.

The Superintendent shall also develop procedural guidelines for:

- A. the proper storage and retention of records including a list of the type and location of records;
- B. informing Board employees of the Federal and State laws concerning student records.

The Board authorizes the use of the microfilm process or electromagnetic processes of reproduction for the recording, filing, maintaining, and preserving of records.

No liability shall attach to any member, officer, or employee of this Board as a consequence of permitting access or furnishing student records in accordance with this policy and regulations.

Any entity receiving personally identifiable information pursuant to a study, audit, evaluation or enforcement/compliance activity must comply with all FERPA regulations. Further, such an entity must enter into a written contract with the Board of Education delineating its responsibilities in safeguarding the disclosed information. Specifically, the entity must demonstrate the existence of a sound data security plan or data stewardship program, and must also provide assurances that the personally identifiable information will not be redisclosed without prior authorization from the Board. Further, the entity conducting the study, audit, evaluation or enforcement/compliance activity is required to destroy the disclosed information once it is no longer needed or when the timeframe for the activity has ended, as specified in its written agreement with the Board of Education. See Form 8330 F14 and Form 8330 F16 for additional contract requirements.

SAFE AT HOME/ADDRESS CONFIDENTIALITY PROGRAM

If a parent (or adult student) presents to the District a valid program authorization card issued by the Secretary of State certifying that the parent (or adult student), the parent's child, or a member of the parent's household is a participant in the Safe at Home/Address Confidentiality Program, the Board shall refrain from including the student's actual/confidential residential address in any student records or files (including electronic records and files) or disclosing the student's actual/confidential residential address when releasing student records. Since student records are available to non-custodial parents, designated school officials who have a legitimate educational interest in the information, and other individuals or organizations as permitted by law (including the public in some situations), the Board shall only list the address designated by the Secretary of State to serve as the student's address in any student records or files, including electronic records and files. Further, the Board shall use the student's designated address for any and all communications and correspondence between the Board and the parent(s) of the student (or adult student). The student's actual/confidential residential address

shall be maintained in a separate confidential file that is not accessible to the public or any employees without a legitimate purpose.

Although the student's actual/confidential address will not be available for release as directory information, the parent (or adult student) may also request that the student's name and telephone number be withheld from any release of directory information. Additionally, if applicable, the student's parent's school, institution of higher education, business, or place of employment (as specified on an application to be a program participant or on a notice of change of name or address) shall be maintained in a confidential manner.

If a non-custodial parent presents a subpoena or court order stating that the non-custodial parent should be provided with copies or access to a student's records, the District will redact the student's confidential address and telephone number from the student's records before complying with the order or subpoena. The District will also notify the custodial/residential parent of the release of student records in accordance with the order or subpoena.

The intentional disclosure of student's actual/confidential residential address is prohibited. Any violations could result in disciplinary action or criminal prosecution.

Revised 5/8/17
Revised 6/13/17
Revised 11/6/17
Revised 11/22/17
Revised 1/6/22

© Neola 20222023

Legal

R.C. 9.01, 111.41, 111.42, 111.43, 111.46, 111.47, 111.99

R.C. 149.41, 149.43, 1347 et seq., 3313.33, 3313.642, 3313.672, 3319.321, 3319.324

34 C.F.R. Part 99

20 U.S.C., Section 1232f through 1232i (FERPA)

26 U.S.C. 152

20 U.S.C. 1400 et seq., Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act

20 U.S.C. 7165(b)

20 U.S.C. 7908

2021 Solomon Amendment: Subtitle C- General Service Authorities and Correction of Military Records SEC. 521

Last Modified by Norm Burkhardt on November 17, 2023



Book	Policy Manual
Section	Policies Recommended for the BOE (42.1 Fall 2023 Update)
Title	TRANSPORTATION
Code	po8600
Status	.
Adopted	October 12, 2015
Last Revised	December 5, 2022

8600 - TRANSPORTATION

It is the policy of the Board of Education to provide transportation for those students whose distance from their school makes this service necessary within the limitations established by State law. Such laws and rules shall govern any question not covered by this policy.

School buses shall be purchased, housed, and maintained by the Board for the transportation of resident students between their home areas and the schools of the District to which they are assigned or to their nonpublic or community schools. The Superintendent may substitute smaller buses for reasons of economy or efficiency of operation.

Children living beyond the following walking limits shall be entitled to bus transportation:

- A. Kindergarten through 5th grade - one (1) mile
- B. Grades 6 through 8 - two (2) miles depending on the route
- C. Transportation of high school students is optional

Exceptions to the foregoing limits may be made in the case of a temporarily or permanently-disabled child who has been so certified by a physician and in the case of adverse safety conditions. Transportation for students who are not entitled to transportation under State law will not be reduced after the start of the school year.

Transportation of eligible vocational or special education children between their home areas and schools outside the District shall be arranged through the use of Board-owned vehicles, through cooperation with other districts, through commercial carriers, and/or by other means in the most efficient and economical manner. The governing authority of a community school shall provide or arrange for transportation free of charge for any eligible special education student enrolled in the community school for whom the student's individualized education program specifies transportation.

Transportation to and from school shall be provided for each student residing in the District and attending a State-chartered nonpublic school on the same basis as established for resident students as set forth above, subject to the following limitation. Transportation will only be provided if it requires thirty (30) minutes or less of direct travel by a school bus during normal travel times as measured from the school building to which the student would be assigned in the District. Transportation shall be provided each day in which the nonpublic school is open with students in attendance (excluding Saturdays and Sundays except by agreement between the entities entered into by July 1st in any year). Chartered nonpublic school students who are transported by the Board may be assigned to ride on buses upon which resident students are also assigned. Notwithstanding the above, the District will provide transportation as a related service to students with disabilities who live in the District and attend a nonpublic school if the School District is provided with supporting documentation from the child's individualized education program ("IEP") or an individual service plan ("ISP") developed by the county board of developmental disabilities pursuant to RC 5126.41 for county residents who receive supported living services.

Furthermore, transportation to and from school shall be provided for each native student (i.e., student entitled to attend school in the District under R.C. 3313.64 or R.C. 3313.65) attending a chartered community school for each day in which the school is open and students are in attendance (excluding Saturdays and Sundays except by agreement between the entities entered into by July 1st each year). However, if that community school is located outside the District, the Board will only provide transportation if it requires thirty (30) minutes or less of direct travel by a school bus during normal travel times as measured from the school building to which the student would be assigned in the District. Native students attending an approved community school located within the District will be provided transportation on the same basis as established for resident students set forth above. Students transported to an approved community school may be assigned to ride on buses upon which resident students are also assigned.

Transportation of eligible nonpublic or community school children between their home areas and schools shall be arranged through the use of District-owned vehicles, through cooperation with other districts, through commercial carriers, and/or by other means in the most efficient and economical manner. The Board will not provide or arrange for transportation of students enrolled in kindergarten through eighth grade using mass transit system vehicles unless the Board and the community/nonpublic school have entered into an agreement authorizing this mode of transportation which is approved by both entities in advance. Students enrolled in ninth grade or above may be transported on vehicles operated by a mass transit system provided that the route does not require more than one (1) transfer.

Upon receipt from the community/nonpublic school of the official start and end times of school for the upcoming year, the District will develop and provide a transportation plan which includes transportation routes and schedules for eligible students. The plan will be provided within sixty (60) days after receiving the start and end time, or when possible, by the first day of August. In the event the Board is not notified of start and end times by the deadline of April 1st, for eligible students who enroll after July 1st but before the start of the school year, a transportation plan will be developed within fourteen (14) business days after receiving a request for transportation. The transportation plan provided to community/nonpublic schools pursuant to this policy and State law is tentative and subject to change.

The Superintendent may determine that it is impractical to transport a student to a community or nonpublic school after considering the factors enumerated under State law. The determination for payment-in-lieu of transportation will be made at least thirty (30) calendar days prior to the District's first day of student instruction, or no later than fourteen (14) calendar days if a student is enrolled less than thirty (30) days prior to the first day of instruction or after the start of the school year, and must be formalized through a resolution passed by the Board at its next scheduled meeting. If transportation is determined to be impracticable, the Board will issue a letter to the student's parent/guardian, the community or nonpublic school, and the Department of Education State Board of Education detailing the reason(s) why the determination was made. Parent(s)/guardians shall be provided payment-in-lieu of transportation at the amount established by State law unless otherwise directed by action of the Department of Education State Board of Education. Parents/guardians may authorize the community or nonpublic school where their student is enrolled to act on their behalf at any time after requesting transportation.

The Board will not be required to provide transportation for any native student enrolled in a community school if the Board has entered into an agreement with the governing authority of the community school that designates the community school as responsible for providing or arranging the transportation of the District's native students to and from the community school and is certified by the Department of Education State Board of Education as having met certain requirements established by State law. The governing authority of a community school must provide or arrange for transportation in a manner that is comparable to the transportation that the District provides or arranges for its native students of the same grade level and distance from school who are enrolled in the District. Also, the governing authority must provide or arrange for the transportation under such agreement free of charge for each of its enrolled students who are eligible to be transported in accordance with R.C. 3327.01 or who would otherwise be transported by the District under the District's transportation policy. If the Board enters into an agreement with the governing authority regarding the transportation of the District's native students, the Department of Education State Board of Education shall make payments to the community school in accordance with the terms of the agreement for each student actually transported.

Likewise, the Board is not required to provide will not be responsible for providing transportation for any native student enrolled in an approved community school if the governing authority of the community school submits a written notification to the Board, by a date prescribed by the Department of Education State Board of Education, stating that the governing authority will accept responsibility for providing or arranging for the transportation of the District's native students to and from the community school. The governing authority's unilateral acceptance of the responsibility to provide transportation must cover the entire school year and shall remain in effect for subsequent school years unless the governing authority submits written notification to the Board relinquishing the transportation responsibility. However, the governing authority cannot relinquish the transportation responsibility before the end of the school year and shall submit such notice by a date prescribed by the Department of Education State Board of Education in order to allow the District a reasonable period of time to prepare for the transportation of its native students enrolled in the community school. If the governing authority unilaterally accepts the transportation responsibility, the Department of Education State Board of Education shall make payments to the community school for each student actually transported calculated in accordance with existing State law governing the calculation of transportation payments to the District from the State and any rules implemented by the State Board of Education and that otherwise would be paid to the District.

The Board is not required to provide transportation to students enrolled in a chartered nonpublic or community school that has offered to provide transportation in lieu of the District providing it.

The Board is not responsible for providing transportation to students who receive transportation from an educational service center participating in the Pupil Transportation Pilot Program.

Bus routes shall be established so that an authorized bus stop is available within reasonable walking distance of the home of every transported resident student, but not more than one-half (1/2) mile for students in grades PK through eighth (8). The Board shall approve the bus routes and time schedule annually no more than ten (10) days after the start of the school year. The Board shall approve the bus routes annually. The Superintendent is authorized to make any necessary changes in the approved route and shall inform the Board at the next regular meeting. Students receiving transportation will be delivered to school no sooner than thirty (30) minutes before the start of school and will be picked up no later than thirty (30) minutes after dismissal.

The Board authorizes the installation and use of video recording devices in the school buses to assist the drivers in providing for the safety and well-being of the students while on a bus.

The Board authorizes the use of a van designed to carry nine (9) passengers or less plus a driver instead of a school bus to transport students to a chartered nonpublic or community school if all of the following apply:

- A. the number of students in the vehicle does not exceed nine (9);
- B. the District regularly transports students to that chartered nonpublic or community school;

- C. the driver has a valid driver's license, is accustomed to driving the vehicle, and meets statutory and administrative requirements for a bus or motor van driver (with the exception of having a commercial driver's license);
- D. the driver may not stop on the roadway to load or unload passengers;
- E. the driver and all passengers are expected to comply with State laws regarding child and occupant restraint devices and safety while in the motor vehicle.

Vans will be inspected not less than two (2) times each year by a qualified mechanic who will determine whether the van is safe to transport students.

Students meeting the Federal definition of homeless will be transported from their temporary place of residence to their school of assignment, at the request of the parent, guardian, or unaccompanied minor, to the same extent as all other students of the District and consistent with this Policy. If the homeless student's temporary residence is located outside the boundaries of the District, the Liaison for Homeless Children will coordinate with the Director of Transportation to contact the district in which the student temporarily resides to arrange for joint transportation of the student and to seek inter-district agreement on a method for apportioning the cost of such joint transportation. In no event will a homeless student be denied enrollment based on issues related to student transportation.

The Superintendent shall be responsible for developing and implementing appropriate administrative guidelines for this policy.

© Neola 202322

Legal

A.C. 3301-51-10, 3301-83-01 et seq., 3301-83-08

R.C. 3313.66, 3314.09, 3314.091, 3319.41, 3327.01 et seq., 4511.01 (F)

R.C. 4511.75 et seq.

42 U.S.C. 11431 et seq.

Last Modified by Norm Burkhardt on November 17, 2023



Book	Policy Manual
Section	Policies Recommended for the BOE (42.1 Fall 2023 Update)
Title	TRANSPORTATION BY SCHOOL VAN
Code	po8650
Status	
Adopted	October 12, 2015

8650 - TRANSPORTATION BY SCHOOL VAN

It is the policy of the Board of Education to provide transportation to students via Board owned and operated school vans when the use of school buses is not reasonable. School vans shall only be used for the transportation of nine (9) or fewer passengers, not including the driver, in accordance with the original design and construction of the vehicle. Students shall not be transported in larger passenger vans (e.g., non-conforming extended van-type vehicles) carrying ten (10) passengers or more (particularly twelve (12) to fifteen (15) passenger vans).

Similar to school buses, school vans shall be purchased, housed, and maintained by the Board for the transportation of resident students between their home areas and the schools of the District to which the students are assigned or to their nonpublic or community schools. However, such use shall generally be limited to preschool children, special needs children, children inaccessible to school buses, and students placed in alternative schools, and children enrolled in nonpublic or community schools in certain circumstances. School vans may also be used to transport students to and from field trips and/or other Board-approved school-related activities.

The Board authorizes the use of a van designed to carry nine (9) passengers or less plus a driver instead of a school bus to transport students to a chartered nonpublic or community school if all of the following apply:

- A. the number of students in the vehicle does not exceed nine (9);
- B. the District regularly transports students to a chartered nonpublic or community school;
- C. the driver has a valid driver's license, is accustomed to driving the vehicle, and meets statutory and administrative requirements for a bus or motor van driver (with the exception of having a commercial driver's license);
- D. the driver may not stop on the roadway to load or unload passengers;
- E. the driver and all passengers are expected to comply with State laws regarding child and occupant restraint devices and safety while in the motor vehicle.

Vans will be inspected not less than two (2) times each year by a qualified mechanic who will determine whether the van is safe to transport students.

Students who are transported by school van are expected to conduct themselves in the same manner required of students transported by school bus and shall be subject to all applicable disciplinary rules.

All school van drivers employed by the Board shall complete the required Ohio School Van Driver training program prior to transporting students, meet all other qualification requirements, and comply with the Ohio Pupil Transportation and Safety Rules and applicable Board policies and guidelines relative to student transportation. No individual shall be employed as a school van driver if the individual has not received a certificate certifying that the driver is at least twenty-one (21) years of age with a minimum of two (2) years of driving experience, eighteen (18) years of age, of good moral character, and is qualified physically and otherwise (O.A.C. 3301-83-06(F)) for the position. Only authorized Board employees or contractors employed by an agency that provides services to the Board may operate and transport students via school van. Van drivers do not need a commercial driver's license.

The Superintendent is responsible for developing and implementing the appropriate administrative guidelines for this policy.

Legal

A.C. 3301-83-19, 3301-83-06(F)

R.C. 3327.10, 4511.01, 4511.76

Last Modified by Norm Burkhardt on November 17, 2023



Book	Policy Manual
Section	Policies Recommended for the BOE (42.1 Fall 2023 Update)
Title	PUBLIC ATTENDANCE AT SCHOOL EVENTS
Code	po9160
Status	
Adopted	October 12, 2015

9160 - PUBLIC ATTENDANCE AT SCHOOL EVENTS

The Board of Education welcomes and encourages members of the community to attend athletic and other public events held by the schools in the District. Due to the need to maintain order and preserve the facilities of the District during the conduct of such events, the Board retains the right to bar the attendance of or remove any person whose conduct may constitute a disruption at a school event. School administrators are expected to call law enforcement officials if a person violates posted regulations or does not leave school property when reasonably requested. In accordance with Board Policy 7440 and AG 7440B, administrators may use metal detectors and other devices to protect the safety and well-being of participants and visitors.

For all school-affiliated events where admission is charged, cash shall be accepted as a method of payment. If concessions are offered, there will be at least one (1) concession stand that will accept cash. If concessions are sold on multiple floors, then at least one (1) location on each floor will accept cash. Persons who receive cash at designated collection points will deposit the cash with the Treasurer/CFO on the next business day of receipt in accordance with Policy 6600.

No alcoholic beverage or other controlled substance may be possessed, consumed, or distributed at any function sponsored by the District or at any function occurring on Board property.

Raffles and similar forms of fund-raising by District-related organizations may be permitted by the Superintendent in accordance with Policy 9211 - District Support Organizations and Policy 9700 - Relations with Special Interest Groups.

No qualified person with a disability will, because the District's facilities are inaccessible to or unusable by persons with disabilities, be denied the benefits of, be excluded from participation in, or otherwise be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity to which Section 504/ADA applies.

For facilities constructed or altered after June 3, 1977, the District will comply with applicable accessibility standards. For those existing facilities constructed prior to June 3, 1977, the District is committed to operating its programs and activities so that they are readily accessible to persons with disabilities. This includes, but is not limited to, providing accommodations to parents with disabilities who desire access to their child's educational program or meetings pertinent thereto.

If a student or adult is asked to leave or is removed from a school event, no admission fees shall be refunded.

Individuals with disabilities shall have an equal opportunity to purchase tickets for events that have been sanctioned or approved by the Board in accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, as amended.

Further, in accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, as amended, the Board shall permit individuals with disabilities to be accompanied by their service animals in all areas of the District's facilities where members of the public, as participants in services, programs or activities, or as invitees, are allowed to go. (See Policy 8390)

Smoking and/or the use of tobacco and/or tobacco substitute products is prohibited at any time within any enclosed facility owned or leased or contracted for by the Board, and in areas directly or indirectly under the control of the Board immediately adjacent to locations of ingress or egress to such facilities. Such prohibition also applies to school grounds.

The Board is aware of the increasing desire of many parents and other members of an audience to make audio and/or video recordings of school events.

Such recordings can be made by parents or other members of the audience without restriction if the performance is not of copyrighted material. However, if the performance is of copyrighted material, recording can be made if the appropriate license authorizing such recordings has been secured in advance by the District. If the performance is of copyrighted material and the necessary license has not been secured in advance by the District, the audience shall be advised before the performance begins that audio and/or video recordings that will be re-broadcast or distributed in any way, such as posting on the Internet, are prohibited.

ADDENDUM A

The Board authorizes the Superintendent to establish rules and procedures governing the use of nondistrict audio/visual recording equipment at any District-sponsored event or activity. Such rules are to be distributed in such a manner that members of the audience who wish to record the event are aware of the rules early enough to make proper arrangements to obtain their recordings without causing delay or disruption to an activity.

Any person or organization seeking to film students or a school activity which is not a public event, must obtain prior permission from the Superintendent.

All notices, signs, schedules, and other communications about school events must contain the following statement:

"In accordance with State and Federal law, the District will provide reasonable accommodations to persons with disabilities who wish to attend and/or participate in school events. Such individuals should notify the building administrator if they require a reasonable accommodation."

© Neola ~~2013~~2023

Legal

29 U.S.C. 794, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended

R.C. 3313.5319

28 C.F.R. Part 35

R.C. 955.43, 1716.02, 1716.03

34 C.F.R. Part 104

42 U.S. C. 12101 et seq., Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended

Last Modified by Norm Burkhardt on November 17, 2023



Book	Policy Manual
Section	Policies Recommended for the BOE (42.1 Fall 2023 Update)
Title	EQUIVALENT EDUCATION OUTSIDE THE SCHOOLS & PARTICIPATION IN EXTRA-CURRICULAR FOR STUDENTS NOT ENROLLED IN THE DISTRICT
Code	po9270
Status	
Adopted	October 12, 2015
Last Revised	November 6, 2017

9270 - EQUIVALENT EDUCATION OUTSIDE THE SCHOOLS & PARTICIPATION IN EXTRA-CURRICULAR FOR STUDENTS NOT ENROLLED IN THE DISTRICT

The Board of Education encourages the enrollment of all school-age children resident in this District in public schools or in approved parochial or private schools so that they may enjoy the benefits of a well-planned educational program and the socialization possible in a group environment.

The Board recognizes its responsibility for assuring that every resident school-age child is enrolled in an approved school or is offered an equivalent education elsewhere and designates the Superintendent to act on its behalf.

Home Education

A parent electing to home-educate a child between the ages of six (6) and eighteen (18) shall provide notice to the Superintendent within five (5) calendar days after commencing home education, moving into the District, or withdrawing from the District or a nonpublic school, and by the thirtieth (30th) day of August each year thereafter. The notice shall include the parent's name and address, the child's name, and an assurance that the child will receive education in the following subject areas:

- A. English language arts
- B. Mathematics
- C. Science
- D. History
- E. Government
- F. Social Studies

The child's exemption from attending school shall be effective upon receipt of the notice. The Superintendent will send written acknowledgment of receipt of the notice within fourteen (14) calendar days. If there is evidence that a child exempt from school for home education is not receiving an education in the required subject areas, the child may be subject to truancy procedures in accordance with Policy 5200.

A child who is enrolled in the District following any period of home education shall be placed in the appropriate grade level, without discrimination or prejudice, in accordance with the policies of the Board.

A parent electing to home-educate a child shall provide the Superintendent with annual written notification. The notification must include certain specific information and assurances concerning the home education program as set forth in State law, the State Department of Education Regulations, and AG-9270.

The Superintendent will excuse the child from attendance for home education purposes upon satisfactory showing that the child is being home-educated by a person qualified to teach the branches in which instruction is required as referenced in AG-9270, and such additional branches, as the advancement and needs of the child may, in the opinion of the

~~Superintendent, require:~~

~~The Superintendent shall develop and implement administrative guidelines that verify, prior to a child being excused from attendance for home education purposes, all requirements specified in the State Department of Education regulations and the conditions established in Policy 5463—Credits from State-Chartered, Special, and Nonchartered Schools have been met.~~

Extra-Curricular Activity Participation of Students Not Enrolled in District

A student who is educated at home is permitted to participate in any extra-curricular activity offered in the School District to which the student would otherwise be assigned during the school year. If the District operates more than one (1) school that serves the student's grade level (as determined by the student's age and academic performance), the student shall be permitted to participate in the extra-curricular activities at the school to which the student would be assigned by the Superintendent pursuant to R.C. 3319.01. If the student elects to participate in an extra-curricular activity offered by the District, the student is not allowed to participate in that activity at another school or school district to which the student is not entitled to attend.

Similarly, a student who is enrolled in a nonpublic school is entitled to participate in any extra-curricular activity not offered by the nonpublic school in the school district to which the student would otherwise be assigned during the school year. If the District operates more than one (1) school that serves the student's grade level (as determined by the student's age and academic performance), the student shall be permitted to participate in that extra-curricular activity at the school to which the student would be assigned by the Superintendent pursuant to R.C. 3319.01.

Eligibility Requirements

In order to participate in any extra-curricular activity as detailed above, a student being educated at home or enrolled in a nonpublic school must be the appropriate age and grade level for the school that offers the extra-curricular activity and must fulfill the same academic, nonacademic, and financial requirements as any other participant as specified in Board policy, administrative guidelines, the student handbooks, and/or the Athletic Handbook. A student educated at home must meet the following academic requirements:

- A. If the student received home ~~education~~ ~~schooling~~ in the preceding grade period, the student shall meet any academic requirements established by the State Board of Education for the continuation of home ~~education~~ ~~schooling~~.
- B. If the student did not receive home ~~education~~ ~~schooling~~ in the preceding grading period, the student's academic performance during the preceding grading period shall have met any academic standards for eligibility to participate in the program established by the District.
- C. Eligibility for a student who leaves a school district mid-year for home ~~education~~ ~~schooling~~ shall be determined based on an interim academic assessment issued by the district in which the student was enrolled based on the student's work while enrolled in the District.
- D. Any student who commences home ~~education~~ ~~schooling~~ after the beginning of a school year and who is, at the time home ~~education~~ ~~schooling~~ commences, ineligible to participate in an extra-curricular activity due to failure to meet academic standards or any other requirements of the District shall not participate in the extra-curricular activity until the student meets the academic requirements established by the State Board of Education for continuation of home ~~education~~ ~~schooling~~ as verified by the Superintendent. No student shall be eligible to participate in the same semester in which the student ~~is~~ determined ineligible.

No eligible home ~~educated~~ ~~schooler~~ or nonpublic school student will be charged any fees in excess of those fees charged to other students for participation in the same extra-curricular activity. No student will be denied the opportunity to participate in interscholastic athletics offered by a school in the District because the student has or is participating in a college credit plus program as long as the student fulfills all academic, nonacademic, and financial requirements.

Revised 6/13/16

© Neola 2023~~17~~

Legal

A.C. 3301-34

R.C. 3313.5311, 3313.5312, 3313.5341, 3313.6110, 3321.03, 3321.04, 3321.042

Last Modified by Norm Burkhardt on November 17, 2023